
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE C 

 
Members of Licensing Sub Committee C are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 2 October 2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
John Lynch 
Head of Democratic Services 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 23 September 2014 

 
 
Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Gary Poole (Chair) 
Councillor Satnam Gill (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Michelline Safi Ngongo 
 

All other members of the Licensing committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 

 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 
 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

5.  Order of Business 
 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 

1 - 16 

B. Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Milly's Mini Market, 49 Upper Street, London, N1 0PN - Application for a new 
premises licence 

17 – 52 
St Mary’s 



 
 
 

 

2.  The Coffee Works Project, 96-98 Islington High Street, London, N1 8EG - 
Application for a new premises licence 
 

53 – 104 
St Peter’s 

B.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

C.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the 
Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the press and public during 
discussion thereof. 

 

D.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE  
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as detailed 
below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present a 
summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  
  
6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points requested 
by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  
  
8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify any 
points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of representations     
given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  
12)  Responsible Authorities 2 
13)  Interested parties mins 
14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 
15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 
16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 
17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 
 



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee C -  17 July 2014 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee C held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  17 July 2014 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Gary Poole (Chair) and Satnam Gill (Vice-Chair) and 
Angela Picknell. 

 
 

Councillor Gary Poole in the Chair 
 

 

1 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
Councillor Gary Poole welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked members and officers 
to introduce themselves.  He stated that the procedure for the meeting was in the printed 
agenda. 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
Apologies were received from Councillor Michelline Ngongo. 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
Councillor Picknell substituted for Councillor Ngongo. 
 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
None. 
 

5 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The order of business would be as the agenda. 
 

6 MARATHON, 193A CALEDONIAN ROAD, N1 1EF (Item B1) 
The licensing officer tabled a map of the area which would be interleaved with the agenda 
papers. 
 
The police representative, Rory Clark, reported that there had been a number of violent 
incidents both inside and outside the venue.  He invited the Sub-Committee to consider all 
options open to them but stated that, at a very minimum, they would recommend that hours 
be reduced to restaurant hours and that a condition be added to the licence so that alcohol 
was ancillary to table meals.   
He highlighted the incidents on page 9 of the agenda and it was noted that conditions had 
been imposed in June 2012 following a review hearing.  Following the review in June 2012, 
the licensee was invited to a Licensing Officer Panel in November 2012 where he told the 
panel that he had not completed the membership scheme as his customers were reluctant 
to give their details.  A review was again lodged in May 2014 following a strong record of 
problems and breaches of conditions. This included a record from one visit from the police 
noting that only one person acting as door supervisor was present at the premises whose 
SIA licence had expired, when three were conditioned.  
Mr Tesfa had not made any changes since the previous review.  A proposal for a 
membership scheme had only been submitted to the Sub-Committee and the police on the 
day of this meeting. This would be interleaved with the agenda papers. The intention of the 
membership condition imposed after the review in June 2012 had been to limit the club to 
members and to trace and control the patrons entering the venue. It was suggested that the 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee C -  17 July 2014 
 

2 
 

continual failure of management meant that revocation was an option for the Sub-
Committee.  
 
The noise officer reported that the noise team had visited in November 2013 to watch 
customers leaving the premises and in January 2014 to measure sound levels.  At the visit 
in January 2014 the sound limiter had been disconnected, which was a breach of condition.  
 
The Licensing Authority reported that an action plan had been drawn up and a way forward 
suggested in order that the licensing objectives be promoted.  The licensee had provided 
details of the membership scheme but nothing had actually been implemented. There had 
not been a proactive approach to management that was expected for this type of premises.  
It would be part of management responsibility to ensure that door supervisors carried a 
current licence.  It had been suggested that hours be reduced to restaurant hours through 
the submission of a minor variation, but this had not been progressed by the licensee. 
 
Mr Aylott, representing the licensee, reported that there had been no crime in the area for 
the past 7 months.  There was nothing to say that all crime was linked to the premises.  
With reference to CAD NI/1056 he reported that the troublemakers had not been customers 
of the premises and the police had been called to help remove them.  The police have been 
asked to assist with problems on the premises as it was considered that all responsible 
authorities had a collective responsibility. Regarding the incident on the 4 August 2013, four 
males had pushed against the door wishing to enter the venue.  There had been no incident 
inside the venue.  The victim did not wish to press charges. 
Mr Aylott considered that there was no proper reference to the membership scheme in the 
conditions and condition 2 of Annex 3 would mean that 3 door supervisors should be at the 
premises for 24 hours. He stated that this would be ridiculous.  He stated that there was no 
fight on the 17 November 2013.  On the 13 August 2012 there had been nothing recorded 
on the CCTV and there had been no prosecutions even though it had been open to the 
police to do so.  He stated that conditions needed to be tightened up.  A review should be 
based on the undermining of the licensing objectives and a breach of conditions did not 
mean there had been an undermining of them.  He referred members to 11.17 of the Home 
Office s.182 guidance. He considered that there was no evidence to support a reduction in 
hours and it would close the business.  Crime occurred at 1.30am at the earliest and to 
suggest midnight for licensable activities was arbitrary.  It was accepted that causes for 
concern should be identified and dispersal and membership rules considered.  He reported 
that the licensing officer was aware that there had been a membership scheme in operation 
for one year. Mr Tesfa reported that he could not manage with the door supervisor 
condition.   
 
In response to questions, Mr Tesfa stated that he’d had a membership scheme for a year, 
however the licensing officer reported that when she had been shown the scheme it was not 
fit for purpose.  Mr Aylott stated that he did not consider seven incidents over a two year 
period a great number and that the designated premises supervisor could be removed if the 
Sub-Committee considered that conditions had not been complied with.  The licensing 
officer informed the Sub-Committee that the conditions added at the review hearing in June 
2012 were those proposed by Dadds and this was reflected in the minutes of the review 
hearing.  Mr Tesfa did not consider he was a bad manager. Mr Aylott stated that Mr Tesfa 
deserved a slap on the wrist. The Sub-Committee considered that the review hearing on the 
14 June 2012 had been a slap on the wrist. 
 
In summary, Rory Clark, stated that the incidents were a result of the failure of 
management.  If Mr Tesfa was removed as a designated premises supervisor he would still 
be involved in the business.  For the licensee to say conditions were improperly worded was 
abdicating his responsibility.  Mr Tesfa had stated that he was unable to afford three door 
supervisors.  Mr Clark stated that, if this was the case, Mr Tesfa should have applied for a 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee C -  17 July 2014 
 

3 
 

minor variation.  The Sub-Committee could take paragraph 11.18 into account when making 
their decision.  He asked that there should be either be a total change in style for the 
premises in line with restaurant core hours as detailed in the licensing policy or a revocation 
of the licence.   
 
The licensing authority asked the Sub-Committee to consider the totality of evidence from 
the police, noise team, residents and the licensing authority when making their decision with 
the promotion of the licensing objectives in mind.  
 
Mr Aylott reported that a change in hours would close the business.  The conditions on the 
licence had not been robust enough. A membership scheme was in place and this was 
something that could be worked on together. The Sub-Committee would need to consider 
what was proportionate or appropriate.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the premises licence in respect of Marathon, 193a Caledonian Road, N1 1EF be 
revoked.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration the fact that since the last review of the 
premises licence in June 2012; there have been various incidents of violent crime reported 
at and/or outside the premises: 
 

 13th August 2012- serious fight within the venue 

 7th October 2012- common assault in the area 

 4th November 2012- serious fight within the venue 

 4th August 2013- serious assault started inside the venue 

 13th October 2013- serious criminal incident inside the venue 

 29 December 2013- serious assault inside the venue. 
 
The Sub-Committee also took into consideration the submissions of the applicant’s and 
respondents’ representatives and specifically that the licensing conditions had been 
breached consistently. 
 
On various occasions when the premises were inspected, the requisite number of trained 
SIA door supervisors was not present. This was not disputed by the respondent’s 
representative but what he did submit was that the conditions (Annex 3) on page 26 of the 
application papers were in his opinion too vague. The implication of his submissions was 
that the requirement that there be “a minimum of 3 SIA trained door supervisors on Friday 
and Saturday” could perhaps be interpreted that the 3 didn’t have to be present at the same 
time. The Licensee stated further that one of the reasons why he had ignored the door 
supervisor condition was due to the cost thereof. 
 

This was rejected by the Sub-Committee. In fact the actual conditions that the respondent’s 
representative referred to were added at the request of the respondents legal 
representatives (Dadd’s, the same solicitors as representing the respondent in the present 
review proceedings). 
 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee C -  17 July 2014 
 

4 
 

The Sub-Committee further considered the fact that the respondent had not complied with 
the condition that there had to be a membership system and membership rules and that no 
persons could be admitted to the premises other than to members and their guests. 
 
The respondents failed to establish a proper membership system in breach of the conditions 
and shortly before the hearing provided a two page document for consideration of the 
committee. The Sub-Committee took into consideration the representations from the 
Licensing Authority that this proposal fell well short of what was required. The actual 
proposed scheme envisaged each member being able to have 5 guests who are not 
members. Such a provision would defeat the object of having a membership system. 
 
There were further breaches of the conditions in that the CCTV system was not operated 
properly and in accordance with the licensing conditions. 
 
The respondent’s representative asked for the respondent to be given a slap on the wrist 
and for more robust conditions to be added to the licence. 
 
The licence has been previously reviewed and further conditions added at the specific 
request of the respondent. This was on 14 June 2012. This was after the licensee attended 
a panel to discuss breaches of his licence, including at that time a failure to have door 
supervisors at the premises and a door supervisor log. 
 
Since then there have been many reports of violent crime in the premises and outside them. 
 
The licensee failed to have his address on the licence changed despite moving from his 
former premises 8 months before. 
 
In October 2012, the licensee attended a Pub Watch meeting and requested that the 
membership scheme be removed. 
 
A month later in November 2012, he attended a Licensing Officer Panel, he had still not 
completed the required membership scheme and the panel advised him to comply with his 
conditions. 
 
The Sub-Committee took the above into consideration which clearly demonstrated that the 
licensee has had repeated warnings and has ignored them and the consequences thereof.  
 
The Licensee has failed to operate and manage the business in accordance with the 
provisions of licensing policies 9 and 10. The Sub-Committee was of the opinion that the 
evidence produced demonstrated a lack of commitment to high standards of management. 
 
The previous review of the licence was on grounds that are substantially similar to the 
grounds for review specified in the 2012 application. 
 
Paragraph 11.18 of the Guidance states “ where a responsible authority such as the 
police….. have already issued warnings requiring improvement- that have failed as part of 
their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely  
repeat that approach and should take this into account when considering what further action 
is appropriate” 
 
The Sub-Committee in deciding what action was proportionate took the above facts into 
consideration. 
 
Despite repeated warnings and engagement with the licensee, including a previous review 
with added conditions, the breaches and criminal behaviour had continued.  

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee C -  17 July 2014 
 

5 
 

 
The Sub-Committee held that revocation of the licence was accordingly the proportionate 
decision to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
 

7 MENELIK, 277 CALEDONIAN ROAD, N1 1EF (Item B2) 
The Sub-Committee noted that this item had been adjourned. 
 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 8.15 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

6 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee C held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  22 July 2014 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Raphael Andrews (Item B1), Gary Poole (Item B2 and 
B3), Satnam Gill and Michelline Ngongo 

 
Councillor Raphael Andrews in the Chair for Item B1 

Councillor Gary Poole in the Chair for Items B2 and B3. 
 

8 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
Councillor Andrews welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked members and officers to 
introduce themselves.  He outlined the procedures for the meeting. 
 

9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
None. 
 

10 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
Councillor Raphael Andrews substituted for Councillor Gary Poole for Item B1 – People’s 
Social Club. 
 

11 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
None. 
 

12 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The order of business would be as the agenda. 
 

13 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 25 February 2014 be confirmed as an accurate 
record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 

14 PEOPLE'S SOCIAL CLUB, 113 HOLLOWAY ROAD, N7 8LT - REVIEW OF PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B1) 
In response to a question from the licensee’s representative, the Chair confirmed that he 
had received and read all the papers as he was aware that he would be substituting for 
Councillor Poole at an early stage. 
 
The licensing officer reported that the police had some CCTV footage. The police 
representative stated that the police wanted the Sub-Committee to see the footage, but that 
it would need to be seen in closed session as it related to an incident that was the subject of 
current criminal proceedings. The licensee’s representative agreed that the CCTV footage 
should not be in the public domain and objected to it being viewed at all as the footage 
showed a one off incident which would be seen out of context. He therefore objected to the 
showing of the footage. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered that they would be able to consider the one off incident in 
context and agreed to hold an adjournment to see the CCTV footage in closed session with 
the police representative and the licensee and the licensee’s representative present.  
Following this adjournment, the Sub-Committee agreed to a further adjournment in closed 

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

7 
 

session to allow the licensee and his representative to put forward their version of events 
shown in the footage. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the witness statement from the licensee’s representative 
following agenda despatch which would be interleaved with the agenda papers. 
 
The police representative, Rory Clark, spoke in favour of the review.  He reported that his 
evidence would be focused on crime and disorder. He referred the Sub-Committee to page 
149 of the agenda.  He reported that the Sub-Committee had seen a head-butting incident 
on the CCTV footage that was subject to criminal proceedings.  He considered that it was 
not appropriate for members of the public to be assaulted whatever the provocation.  The 
problems at the premises required a higher standard of management.  A sexual assault in 
the venue had not been recorded or reported to the police. There had been a further head-
butting incident. This indicated that there had been two head-butting incidents in twelve 
months and it was possible from the description that this was the licensee. The premises 
had been reviewed previously and conditions added.  Management should have improved. 
At a visit on the 4 May, detailed at page 160 of the papers, it was noted that there were only 
two registered door staff present and not five as conditioned in the licence.  Mr Clark also 
drew members’ attention to a further incident detailed at page 167 of the agenda.  He 
reported that the statement that had been circulated from Dadds had been the view of one 
person, over one evening, following the submission of the review.  He asked that at the very 
least, hours be reduced to core hours outlined in the policy. 
 
The noise officer reported that the disturbance to residents was acute but normally of short 
duration.  Customers of the premises would leave the premises talking very loudly, as they 
had been talking above the sound of loud music inside.  Due to the late operating hours, it 
was very difficult for the noise patrol to attend to residents complaints. 
 
The licensing authority reported that, following the review in November 2012, an action plan 
had been put in place which had been working but things had changed in recent months.  
There was a nearby premise which had caused problems on the 11/12 July but this should 
not distract members from the problems caused to residents from this premises.  The 
licensing authority had made recommendations on page 41 of the agenda but there were a 
number of other options available to the Sub-Committee. 
 
Councillor Gary Poole reported resident’s lives had been blighted.  Residents were seeking 
revocation of the licence.  A review had been submitted in November 2012 and conditions 
added regarding dispersal which had failed to remedy the situation. An unprecedented 
number of residents were attending this meeting and no financial inducement had been 
offered for them to attend. Other remedies had failed, conditions had proved inadequate 
and the Sub-Committee should not hesitate to take tough action. 
 
A local resident from Furlong Road stated that this was a quiet residential area but, up until 
7.30am, patrons sat outside in their cars, drinking, smoking, shouting.  Residents heard car 
doors slamming and car horns.  Gardens were treated as urinals, were used for sexual 
activity and as litter bins.  Residents felt imprisoned and could not have guests to stay.  
Anti-social behaviour was now accepted as the norm and the resident asked that the 
licence be revoked. 
 
Mr Aylott, Dadds solicitors, representing the licensee, asked that he be directed to the 
pages for the representation from the local resident that had just spoken.  The Chair 
reported everybody had read the papers.  
 
A resident from Crane Grove reported that the licensee had tried but was unable to 
eliminate the impact of the premises. A new club would not receive a licence with these 

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

8 
 

same hours. The club was a drain on council resources and impacted on crime and disorder 
and the health of local residents. He asked that the licence be revoked. 
 
Mr Aylott asked that he be directed to the pages for the representations from the local 
residents that had spoken. The Chair reported that all papers should have been read by Mr 
Aylott. Mr Aylott suggested that there had been perhaps an element of bias and asked for a 
short adjournment so that he might seek instructions from his client.  
 
A short adjournment was granted, following which Mr Aylott requested a formal adjournment 
of the case for a new Sub-Committee as he did not consider the applicant would receive a 
fair hearing. The Chair heard submissions from the police representative regarding this 
request. At this point the licensee withdrew from the meeting. The police authority 
considered that there were no grounds for an application for an adjournment.  
 
The Sub-Committee adjourned the meeting to further consider the request for an 
adjournment and to further consider their options. 
 
Following the adjournment, the Chair reported that they would continue with the meeting. 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that they were not biased and considered that the 
licensee would receive a fair hearing. It was noted that, during the adjournment, the 
licensing officer had advised Mr Aylott of the pages as detailed in the agenda of local 
resident’s representations and that following consultation with his client, Mr Aylott stated 
that he would not be taking any further part in proceedings as they did not consider it to be 
a fair hearing. The Sub-Committee took legal advice and decided to continue with the 
meeting in the licensee’s absence.  
 
In summary the police stated that, despite intimidation, the Sub-Committee should not be 
deterred from making the right decision.  He reported that the behaviour of the applicant at 
the hearing showed the type of person that the police were dealing with and it was a shame 
that he had not taken his opportunity to give his view at the hearing.  Councillor Poole 
stated that the outburst from the licensee indicated what residents were living with and 
revocation was the only measure that would adequately deal with the situation. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the premises licence in respect of the People’s Social Club, 113 Holloway Road, N7, 
be revoked. 
 
REASON FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard submissions from the police and the licensee’s representative as 
to the viewing of CCTV footage.  The Sub-Committee decided that the footage would be 
viewed in closed session and heard from the licensee as to the incident shown on the 
footage, also in closed session.  The Sub-Committee considered the CCTV evidence along 
with all the evidence in the committee papers and submissions. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard from the police representative that the review had been brought 
on the grounds of crime and disorder and public safety and was referred to page 149 for a 
summary of the incidents upon which the police relied. The Sub-Committee heard from the 
police representative that the most recent incident that prompted the review was a head-
butting incident that is presently the subject of criminal proceedings.  The police 
representative expressed concerns about a sexual assault in the venue. The Sub-

Page 9



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

9 
 

Committee heard that, although the victim did not substantiate the allegation to police, the 
police were concerned that staff in the venue failed to report the incident to the police. The 
police also expressed concern about a head butt on a member of the public believed to be 
by a member of staff. The Sub-Committee heard police concerns about the management’s 
engagement since a previous review in November 2012.  The police were concerned that 
the management should be on their ‘best behaviour’ following the last review and yet they 
were back before the Sub-Committee. The Sub-Committee was referred by the police 
representative to a witness statement at page 160, setting out police concerns regarding the 
number of door supervisors, and a further witness statement at page 167, concerning noise 
at the premises. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard from the licensing authority that there was another premises in 
the area that had caused some problems, the most recent being on the 11/12 July.  The 
licensing authority stressed that although there are other premises, this did not distract from 
the problems caused by these premises and there have been problems at times when the 
other premises were not operating. The Sub-Committee heard from the licensing authority 
that following the last review, an action plan had been put forward that had seemed to work 
but that this had changed in recent months. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard from Councillor Poole that the lives of residents had been 
blighted for a sustained period and that residents lived in dread before each weekend as to 
what time they were going to be awoken from sleep.  The Sub-Committee heard from 
Councillor Poole that residents were seeking revocation. The licensee had been reviewed 
previously and remedies had failed. Two other local residents spoke in favour of the review 
and expressed concerns regarding the behaviour of patrons outside the premises which 
included shouting, door slamming, drinking, using drugs and littering. The residents 
complained that patrons used their streets as the clubs private car park, toilet and litter bin 
and that residents had continuous sleepless nights. Concerns were raised that the premises 
supervisors could not control patrons. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard submissions from the licensee’s representative requesting an 
adjournment. The licensee’s representative requested that a new Sub-Committee be 
formed to hear the application as he considered that there was an element of bias and that 
the licensee would not get a fair hearing. The Sub-Committee heard submissions from the 
police representative against the adjournment request.  He submitted that there were no 
grounds to believe that there had been bias and that the proceedings had been conducted 
very fairly. The police representative drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the large 
number of members of the public in attendance. 
 
The Sub-Committee left the room to deliberate and decided to continue with the hearing. 
The Sub-Committee considered the submission that there was an appearance of bias but 
did not agree. The Sub-Committee were satisfied that the licensee would have the 
opportunity to speak and they would fairly consider his submissions.  The Sub-Committee 
also noted the large number of residents present. 

 
The Sub-Committee noted that by this point the licensee had left the meeting and his 
representative stated that they would not be taking any further part in the meeting. The Sub-
Committee decided to continue in the licensee’s absence. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered the volume of residents’ complaints concerning public 
nuisance.  The Sub-Committee considered the witness statement received from Dadds 
solicitors dated 16 July 2014, but noted that this referred to one visit on one night compared 
to the frequent incidents reported by residents.  The Sub-Committee was of the view that 
the residents’ submissions evidenced an undermining of the licensing objectives on 
numerous occasions.   

Page 10



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

10 
 

 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that the evidence showed that the management of the 
premises was not at the high standard required and that the behaviour of patrons of the 
premises could not be controlled, leading to crime and disorder inside and outside the 
premises and public nuisance. The Sub-Committee noted the representations in support of 
the premises but reached the view that when considering all of the evidence, from the 
responsible authorities and residents as well as those in support, it was clear that the 
premises had caused continuous disturbance to residents.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the premises had been subject to a review in 2012 and that 
further conditions were added to the licence as a result.  The Sub-Committee noted that 
these conditions had not been sufficient to promote the licensing objectives and end the 
disturbances. 
 
The Sub-Committee was of the view that the licensee had failed to demonstrate his ability to 
properly manage the premises and promote the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee was not satisfied that the addition of further conditions would promote 
the licensing objectives.  There was no evidence to suggest that a reduction in hours would 
do anything other than change the time of the disturbance.  No evidence was submitted to 
suggest that management practices were to be changed. The Sub-Committee formed the 
view that the seriousness of the disturbances caused by the premises and the criminal 
incidents that had taken place meant that a revocation of the licence was proportionate. 
 
The Sub-Committee took into account Licensing policies 9 and 10 regarding standards of 
management and policy 30 in relation to reviews.  The Sub-Committee also took into 
account the home office guidance particularly paragraphs 11.18 to 11.23. 
 

15 7 DAYS FOOD AND WINE, 93A STROUD GREEN ROAD, N4 3PX - APPLICATION FOR 
NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B2) 
The trading standards officer had no objection to the application with the proposed 
conditions attached.  He stated that he would commend the applicants and they had 
followed advice given. The applicants had agreed the wording of the condition regarding 
underage sales.  
 
The police stated he agreed with the recommendation from the trading standards officer.  
He considered that the applicants had taken on a difficult venue but had followed advice 
and despite their inexperience were keen to be successful. 
 
The applicant reported that they had followed advice from the Police.  They had opened a 
few months previously without an alcohol licence and had come to know their customer 
base but needed a premises licence in order to sell alcohol.  
 
In response from questions they stated that they would have the licence from 10am if it was 
considered necessary but as there was a local Tesco nearby they would prefer to trade 
from 8am.  
 
RESOLVED 
a) That the application for a new premises licence in respect of 7 days Food and Wine, 93a 
Stroud Green Road, N4 be granted:- 
 
i) To supply alcohol for consumption off the premises from 08:00 to 23:00 on Monday to 

Sunday. 

ii) To agree the opening hours of the premises from 07:00 to 02:00 Mondays to Sundays. 

Page 11



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

11 
 

 
b)  Conditions as outlined in appendix 3 as detailed on pages 194/5 of the agenda shall be 
applied to the licence. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that trading standards had no objections to the grant of a licence 
with conditions proposed.  Trading standards commended the approach of the applicant 
and commented that the applicant had sought and followed advice from the responsible 
authorities. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the police that a meeting with the applicants had 
been both positive and negative in that the applicants had been keen to take advice but 
were inexperienced and showed some naivety in taking on a difficult venue.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard from the applicant that they tried other ways of getting trade 
without a licence and got to know their customer base but they needed the alcohol licence. 
The applicant reiterated a willingness to take advice. In response to a question the applicant 
stated that they would consider a 10am start time but that as there was a Tesco nearby, 
with an earlier start time, they would prefer to trade from 8am. 
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 9 and 10 regarding high 
standards of management and policies 7 and 8 in relation to hours and policy 4 in relation to 
shops selling alcohol. 
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that with the proposed conditions the grant of the licence 
would promote the licensing objectives.   
 

16 A AND B FOOD AND WINE, 72 AUBERT PARK, N5 1TS - REVIEW OF PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B3) 
The Sub-Committee noted the additional documents that were circulated separately from 
the agenda.  These would be interleaved with the agenda papers. 
 
The trading standards officer summarised the events that had led to the review.  In 
November 2012 and December 2013 there had been failed underage test purchases.  An 
officer panel had been held in December 2012 following the first test purchase and this was 
followed by the further underage sale in December 2013.  It was noted at this time that no 
training records were being kept.  There had been a lack of engagement by the licensee. 
He did not attend the officer panel and there had been no response to a letter sent to the 
licensee in December asking him to provide evidence of improved management.  The 
licensee had stated that he had not received the letter. However, he had made no contact 
with trading standards since the review application in March 2014. 
 
In response to questions from the Sub-Committee, the trading standards officer reported 
that no explanation had been given as to why the licensee failed to attend the officer panel 
and the licensee had made no contact with trading standards despite a series of 
correspondence.  
 
The police officer stated that they were in full support of the review.   He stated that they 
had failed to inform customers of the DPPO. He asked the Sub-Committee to place the 

Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

12 
 

additional conditions listed in the police representation on the licence if revocation was not 
agreed. 
 
The licensing authority also asked that if the decision of the Sub-Committee was not 
revocation, they impose a condition on the licence regarding the sale of alcohol on match 
days. 
 
Archie Madden, counsel for the licensee, informed the Sub-Committee that there was no 
excuse for the failed test purchases which were a breach of the licensing objectives.  He 
stated that this would normally not trigger a review but for other concerns that trading 
officers had. Conditions that had been proposed by the responsible authorities were fully 
accepted.  He accepted that there had been a failure to engage. The licensee understood 
that the premises were located in a sensitive area. The designated premises supervisor was 
very experienced and worked at the premises for five to six hours a day and ran his own 
business out of the area in the evening.  The problems had arisen when more junior 
members of staff had been on duty.  He informed the Sub-Committee that staff would attend 
training as proposed by trading standards and in addition a new member of staff would be 
employed for when the designated premises supervisor was not in the shop.   
He reported that a review should identify problems in order that they can be solved.  If junior 
members of staff were properly supervised this would have solved the underage sale 
problems.  The licensee had attended the offices for the officer panel but misunderstood 
that he needed to attend the meeting. He reported that the licensee had been ill which had 
hindered his ability to concentrate.  The licensee had not received the letter although it was 
accepted that it had been sent. He considered that the football fans from Germany would be 
unaware that this was a DPPO area but he accepted that the licensee had not informed 
customers. A revocation of the licence would mean that it would be very difficult for the shop 
to survive and residents will lose a retail outlet.  All conditions proposed were accepted. 
 
In response to questions, the designated premises supervisor informed the Sub-Committee 
that staff were asked not to read the paper or talk on the telephone or be distracted when 
serving customers. The Sub-Committee had concerns that staff were not being properly 
supervised and that the conditions proposed by the responsible authorities were not already 
in place. The licensee stated that he had attended the officer panel but did not go into the 
meeting as he was not aware that he should. As the designated premises supervisor was 
not in attendance all day the applicant reported that there would be an additional trained 
member of staff if required. 
 
In summary, the trading standards officer reported that these suggestions had been made 
very late.  He would have been less concerned if there had been contact made months ago.  
He asked that a long suspension be given if the licence was not revoked.  
 
The applicant stated that he accepted the proposals made by the responsible authorities.  
This was a small business with a very experienced designated premises supervisor. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the premises licence in respect of A and B Food and Wine, 72 Aubert Park, N5 1TS be 
revoked. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy. 
 

Page 13



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

13 
 

The Sub-Committee heard evidence from Trading Standards that there had been an 
underage sale in 2012 and a further underage sale in December 2013, which had prompted 
the review application.  Trading standards expressed concerns that the business was not 
treating underage sales as a priority. The Sub-Committee heard evidence that staff 
appeared to be trained but that nevertheless, the underage sale still occurred. The trading 
standards officer stated that the licensee had failed to engage properly with responsible 
authorities since the underage sale and that there had been no evidence of management 
improvements.  The Sub-Committee noted that trading standards would not normally seek 
revocation for two failed test purchases however, in this case there were other problems. 
The trading standards officer was unable to say anything positive about the business.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the police were in full support of the review.  The Sub-
Committee was referred to the police evidence at page 215 of disregard for the DPPO on 
Arsenal match days.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the Licensing Authority was also concerned about the 
premises selling alcohol on match days.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard from the licensee’s representative on the subject of the 
underage sales.  He recognised the seriousness of the offences but submitted that this was 
a problem that could be solved improved training for the licence holder and junior members 
of staff. It was submitted that the business had a very experienced designated premises 
supervisor.  The licensee’s representative offered a condition that all staff would attend an 
approved training course and suggested that a new, trained, member of staff could be 
recruited immediately if necessary.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the designated premises supervisor worked at the premises 
five to six hours per day and that he ran his own business away from the premises in the 
evenings.   
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that the licensee had been ill and that this hindered his 
ability to concentrate on matters although it was accepted that the licensee should have 
been in contact with the responsible authorities. The Sub-Committee noted the submission 
that there had been a misunderstanding as to who should attend the officers’ panel 
meeting.  The Sub-Committee noted that the licensee had accepted all of the proposed 
conditions made by the responsible authorities.  
 
The Sub-Committee was concerned that the granting of the new licence would undermine 
the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee was not confident that the management of the 
premises met the high standards required.  The Sub-Committee was concerned that the 
designated premises supervisor, although very experienced, was not on the premises for a 
sufficient amount of time to ensure the smooth running of the business.  The Sub-
Committee was concerned about the lack of engagement with responsible authorities 
following the underage sale and the lack of responsible management on match days.  
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that revocation was a proportionate response to the review 
application.  Although conditions had been accepted the Sub-Committee was not satisfied 
that these would promote the licensing objectives. Nor was the Sub-Committee confident, in 
light of the lack of engagement, that a period of suspension would resolve the clear 
management failings at the premises.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 9 and 10 regarding 
standards of management and police 30 regarding reviews of premises licences.  
 
 

Page 14



Licensing Sub Committee C -  22 July 2014 
 

14 
 

17 EXEMPT MINUTES - 22 JULY 2014 (Item D1) 
 
That the confidential minutes of the meeting on the 25 February 2014 be confirmed as an 
accurate record and signed by the Chair. 
 

  
 
 The meeting ended at 10.15 pm 

 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17

Agenda Item B1



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53

Agenda Item B2



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	220714 minutes

	B1 Milly's Mini Market, 49 Upper Street, London, N1 0PN - Application for a new premises licence
	B2 The Coffee Works Project, 96-98 Islington High Street, London, N1 8EG - Application for a new premises licence

